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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Cambridge Meetinghouse is a Federal Style brick structure which employs the tradi­ 
tional New England meetinghouse plan of a gabled front elevation with central entrance 
and belltower. The projecting central pavilion is a variation common to the Federal 
period. Wall construction is seven-course American bond brick on a stone foundation. 
The roof is clad with slate. A molded box cornice extends across the front gable and 
faces the central pavilion as a pediment with fan louvre. The brick belltower has large 
rectangular louvres on all four elevations, a molded cornice, and is surmounted by an 
octagonal domed cupola. The front entrance has slightly recessed panelled double doors, 
panelled reveals, and is framed by a surround of pilasters supporting an entablature. 
First-story fenestration uses twenty-over-fifteen sash; the second story has nine-over- 
six sash. The east elevation side door has a glazed transom.

The Meetinghouse is located on a main street in Jeffersonville, Cambridge's largest 
village. It substantially retains its original exterior fabric and appearance. The 
only significant alterations occurred in 1901 when the interior was completely renova­ 
ted to change the building from a church to a public auditorium. A large Colonial 
Revival style shed-like projection was added to Hie^reaFTio accomodate a theatrical 
stage. A small ell on this addition is visible from the street and is faced with a 
corniced parapet. All original interior fabric, except for window surrounds were removed 
at that time. In addition, several front elevation window aperatures were bricked in, and 
two west elevation windows were sympathetically altered to doors with glazed transoms. 
One of these doors is on the second story and is served by an iron fire escape. The 
dome may also have been added at this time. Letters reading "Town Meeting Playhouse" 
were applied to the front pavilion in the 1960's.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Cambridge Meetinghouse, also known as the Old Brick Church, is significant as an 
example of the New England meetinghouse as it developed in Vermont during the Federal 
period. The gable-front form with central entrance and belltower first emerged in the 
eighteenth century, and became a virtual standard building type for churches, academies, 
and town halls from c, 1800 until c, 1875, when the eclecticism of Victorian architec­ 
ture required less formal proportions. On this particular meetinghouse a pedimented 
central pavilion and domed cupola are employed to simulate the monumental portico and 
multi-tiered steeple often found on higher style examples of the period. Other orna­ 
mentation includes a fan louvre in the front pediment, a molded cornice, and Neo­ 
classical entrance surround. It is one of the most significant examples of the Federal 
style in Lamoille County.

The Cambridge Meetinghouse was erected in 1826 as a Union Church, to be shared by Con- 
gregationalists, Baptists, Methodists, and Universalists. This unusually early example 
of denominational interaction evolved in just a few years into a radical brand of anti- 
sectarianism which kept the church, and at times the whole town, in a state of "wild 
excitement," in which "the regular labors and duties of life were broken up, and in 
some cases dispensed with altogether. Business was suspended." Known in the early 
years as Truarism, this religious ferment came to a head in the 1840's when members of 
the church calling themselves Perfectionists established a free love commune in Cam­ 
bridge. By 1852, they had moved away, mostly to the famous silver-making commune at 
Oneida, New York, and the church's revolutionary period ended.

In 1866, the Town of Cambridge began to use the meetinghouse as a town hall; in 1871, 
the present bell was purchased, and in 1889, the Congregationalists built their own 
church near the center of the village, marking the last use of the building for religious 
services. The only significant alterations occurred in 1901, when the interior was com­ 
pletely renovated and a large shed-like projection was added to the rear to accomodate 
a theatrical stage, and the building was converted to an "opera house." Of the original 
interior fabric, only molded window surrounds and the gallery frame survived. In 1958, 
the Town moved its offices out of the vestry, and, except for a brief revival as a sum­ 
mer stock theater in the 1960 T s, the old meetinghouse has been vacant since.
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property now or formerly of Reynolds; thence proceeding northerly a distance of 72.5 
feet along the common boundary of this property and lands and premises formerly of 
Lillian Pope to a point; thence turning to the left at an interior angle of 90° and pro­ 
ceeding a dsitance of 72 feet to a point; thence turning to the left at an interior 
angle of 90° and proceeding along the boundary of lands and premises now or formerly 
of Reynolds a distance of 72.5 feet to a point; thence turning to the left and proceed­ 
ing along the boundary of lands and premises now or formerly of Reynolds a distance of 
72 feet to the point and place of beginning.
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